ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 24, 2016
3:30 p.m

MEMBERS PRESENT

Senator M ke Dunl eavy, Chair
Senator Charlie Huggins, Vice Chair
Senator Cathy G essel

Senat or Berta Gardner

MEMBERS ABSENT

Senator Gary Stevens

COW TTEE CALENDAR

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NGS

State Board of Education & Early Devel opnent
Rebecca Hi nshoot - Sitka

- CONFI RVATI ON ADVANCED
Pr of essi onal Teaching Practices Conmi ssion
Davi d DeVaughn - North Pole
Mel ody Mann - Wasilla
Paul Prussing - Juneau
Francis Roberts - Honer
- CONFI RVATI ONS ADVANCED
Uni versity of Al aska
Stacy Lucason - Anchorage
Deena Paranmp - Pal ner
- CONFI RVATI ONS ADVANCED
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
No previous action to record

W TNESS REG STER

REBECCA HI MSHOOT, Appoi nt ee

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -1- March 24, 2016



Al aska State Board of Education & Early Devel opnent

Sitka, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as an appointee to the Board of
Education & Early Devel oprent.

DAVI D DEVAUGHN, Appoi nt ee

Pr of essi onal Teaching Practices Conmmi ssion

North Pol e, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified as an appointee to the
Pr of essi onal Teaching Practices Conm ssi on.

MELCDY MANN, Appoi nt ee

Wasi |l a, Al aska

Pr of essi onal Teachi ng Practi ces Comm ssion

North Pol e, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as an appointee to the
Pr of essi onal Teachi ng Practices Comm ssion.

PAUL PRUSSI NG Appoi nt ee

Pr of essi onal Teachi ng Practices Comm ssion

North Pol e, Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified as an appointee to the
Pr of essi onal Teaching Practices Conmm ssi on.

FRANCI S ROBERTS, Appoi ntee

Pr of essi onal Teaching Practices Commi ssion

Hormer, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified as an appointee for t he
Pr of essi onal Teaching Practices Conmm ssi on.

STACEY LUCASON, Appoi ntee

Uni versity of Al aska Board of Regents

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as an appointee to the University
of Al aska Board of Regents.

DEENA PARAMO, Appoi nt ee

Uni versity of Al aska Board of Regents

Pal mer, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as an appointee to the University
of Al aska Board of Regents.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
3:30: 34 PM

CHAIR MKE DUNLEAVY called the Senate Education Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:30 p.m Present at the call to

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 2- March 24, 2016



order were Senators Gessel, Huggins, Gardner, and Chair
Dunl eavy.

Confirmati on Hearings

3:30: 55 PM

CHAI R DUNLEAVY announced confirmation hearings for the Al aska
State Board of Education & Early Devel opnent, the Professiona
Teaching Practices Comm ssion, and the University of Alaska
Board of Regents.

Al aska State Board of Education & Early Devel opnent

3:31: 54 PM

REBECCA HI MSHOOT, Appoi ntee, Al aska State Board of Education &
Early Devel opnent, testified as an appointee to the Board of
Education & Early Devel opnent. She related that she is a science
specialist in grades 2 - 5 and a gifted education teacher. She
thanked the commttee for the opportunity to share her
qualifications for the appointnent and for the work they do. She
said it is an honor to be considered for an appointnment to the
Board. As an educator with a vast anount of experience, she
bel i eves she brings a valuable voice to the Board. She described
her broad professional networKk.

She nmamintained that it is perhaps the single greatest
responsibility of a society to raise and educate the next
generation, and she opined the best way to do so is in
partnership with famlies, conmunities, and students.

She explained that the Board has set three goals: nodernizing
education in Al aska, increasing local control, and ensuring the
best quality teachers for every student in Al aska. She spoke of
how educator quality has been one of her primary goals and she
listed the awards she has received because of it. She noted that
she currently serves on the Professional Teaching Practices
Comm ssion (PTPC). She opined that every student in Al aska
deserves a conpassionate, skilled, know edgeabl e teacher.

She spoke of her personal practice to renmain on the cutting edge
of quality education and to bear the highest professional
standards. She concluded that there is an inportant role for
herself as a practitioner on the Board as it seeks to achieve
the strategic plan goal of providing the best quality educators
for Al aska's students.

She stated with the passage of Every Student Succeeds Act
(ESSA), Al aska has the opportunity to increase local control in

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 3- March 24, 2016



schools. She welconmed the shift away from high stakes testing.
She said Alaska's 53 school districts are well-positioned to
navigate the shift in this new federal law, but there is nuch
i mportant work to do in the com ng nonths.

She expl ained that reasons why she becane a teacher and how she
woul d bring her experiences as a teacher to the Board to help
ensure the inportant discussions about education in Al aska
i ncl ude the cl assroom perspective.

3:36: 04 PM
SENATOR GARDNER asked about inplenenting the Marzano Mdel in
school s and what noderni zi ng educati on neans.

M5. HIMSHOOT replied that Senator Gardner's school district
follows the Danielson Mdel, but in the Sitka School District
the Marzano Mddel is used for educator evaluations. They both
provi de research-based information on effective teaching to
school s.

She responded that nodernizing education is a broad goal. She
said she does not know what the Board's definition is, but she
assurmed each district would define it for itself. She gave an
exanple of nodernizing digital technology - electronic white
boards in every classroomin the Sitka School District.

3:38: 07 PM
SENATOR HUGA NS asked, with local control enphasized under ESSA,
why a State Board is needed.

M5. HI MSHOOT expl ai ned that the Board oversees the Departnent of
Education and nust interpret ways to apply new statutes. She
said she likes that her district can set its own policies; the
Board provides oversite.

SENATOR HUGE NS asked how Governor Walker <chose her as an
appoi nt ee.

MS. HI MSHOOT said she applied a year ago and was chosen to serve
on the PTPC. The Governor's Ofice reached out this year to
previ ous applicants to apply for the Board.

3:40: 27 PM
CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked why she was chosen by the Governor.

M5. HI MSHOOT replied that she could not speak for the Governor.
She said she interviewed with the Chairs and Conmm ssions Ofice

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -4- March 24, 2016



and then with the Governor's Ofice. She did not know the
Governor's reasons for choosing her. She added that the entire
Board had lunch with the Governor on Tuesday.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked how outside groups influence the Board when
maki ng regul ati ons and whether she sees herself as representing
t eachers.

M5. HI MSHOOT stated when nmaking decisions she decides what is
best for students.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked how she sees the legislature's role in
publ i ¢ educati on.

M5. H MSHOOT said she would like to think the legislature is a
partner in education who is |ooking at teachers and schools as
prof essional s and supporting famlies and children.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked if her role was that of a regul atory maker.

M5. HI MSHOOT said her background as a teacher and her experience
colors her view as a regul atory naker.

3:43: 43 PM
CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked what school choice is.

M5. HI MSHOOT replied that it neans famlies can choose which
school s their kids go to.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked if she supports the concept of school
choi ce.

M5. HI MSHOOT sai d absol utely.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked for her opinion of federal involvenent in
education. He examned his reasons for going into teaching. He
referred to NCLB, now ESSA, and the change to "Al askanize"
education in ternms of federal governnment overreach. He asked her
to conment.

M5. HI MSHOOT stated she is not a conplier; a "critical thinker”
is nore accurate. She said she nust weigh where she puts her
efforts because students only have one chance each year in a
cl assroom She opined that ESSA provides |ess overreach and it
is a critical time for Alaska to consider what it can do. She
cautioned not to fight battles "we can't win" and to fully
under stand what the | aw says.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 5- March 24, 2016



3:48: 22 PM
SENATOR HUGGE NS asked where she went to school

M5. H MSHOOT said UAS and at the UA-Sitka Canpus.
SENATOR HUGGE NS asked where she taught school and how | ong.
MS. HI MSHOOT said four schools and 16 years.

SENATOR HUGE NS asked what contributions she made and how nuch
better the systemis for them

3:50: 06 PM

M5. HI MSHOOT she said she has devel oped herself as a teacher,
staying current and better with tine, and bringing her passion
into the classroom for hands-on activities, as well as having
conmpassi on with students.

She addressing the systems inprovenents over fifteen years and
said schools are doing better at <collecting useful data to
addr ess probl ens.

SENATOR HUGA NS spoke of the Al aska Measures of Progress (AWMP)
and asked if the state should continue them

3:54:21 PM

MS. HI MSHOOT said she cannot speak to the AMP deci sions, but she
t hought they were a requirenment under federal |law. She said she
| ooks to find a tool that provides useful data.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY argued that Al aska's Departnent of Education nade
the decision to test wevery year; California did not. He
guestioned whether the state has to do everything the federa
governnent requires.

SENATOR HUGA NS asked Ms. Hinshoot to consider seeking a waiver
to the AMP and be open-m nded when considering it.

3:57:27 PM

CHAI R DUNLEAVY turned to the topic of parental rights as it
relates to standardi zed assessnents and ot her subjects. He noted
the tendency away from public schools to private schools. He
requested her comments.

M5. HI MSHOOT recalled the history of standards based assessnent
(SBA), with which teachers had input, and the resulting data

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 6- March 24, 2016



that showed their school was weak in a specific area. She said,
ideally, an assessnent will allow parents to see areas their
child needs inprovenent. The AMP, in which teachers also had
i nput, appears to have fail ed because of usel ess data.

She comented that she hopes the exodus from public to private
schools is not really happening, but if it is, it could be from
t he fear-nongering regarding what's happening in public schools.
People may not have full information. She agreed that schools
are a famly's choice and teachers will never know their child
as well as the parents do. She enphasized that there needs to be
partnershi ps between teachers and parents.

4:01:46 PM
CHAI R DUNLEAVY noted that it is a fact that there is an exodus
from public schools. He said hone school progranms did not exist
bef ore 1995.

M5. HI MSHOOT asked if he was referring to correspondence
progr amns.

CHAIR DUNLEAVY said yes. In response to a question, he
mai ntai ned that there was another option for parents to educate
their children outside of the public school. He said the student
popul ation in Alaska is shrinking and the honmeschool population
is growing in the Mat-Su District. He said he has no problem
stating that a lot of parents don't want their kids to attend
nei ghbor hood school s.

VB. H MBHOOT countered that nati onal research shows that
famlies adore their children's teachers.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY said parents have not said they have left schools
because they do not like their teachers; there are a host of
reasons parents are taking their kids out of school. One reason
i s because parents were not involved in devel oping standards. He
referred to when NCLB was adopted in 2001. There was a provision
that all subgroups nust be tested. Now parents do not want their
students tested.

M5. HI MSHOOT said parents are in charge of their children and
shoul d make those decisions. She added that she was trained in
the developnent of the tests and was happy to do so. She
reiterated the need for partnerships.

4:06: 09 PM

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -7- March 24, 2016



CHAI R DUNLEAVY di scussed outside groups coming into schools to
t each courses.

M5. H MSHOOT said the state board is noving in the direction of
| ocal control. She said she partners with Junior Achievenent, an
out side group, because they are experts. She stressed that she
was always in the classroom when partnering with outside groups.
Cl assroom oversight with experts is the way to get nore done
especially in tinmes of budget crisis.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked if she would extend that to public/private
part ner shi ps.

M5. H MSHOOT stated that the |ocal school board can make that
deci si on.

4:08: 28 PM

CHAI R DUNLEAVY spoke of the push to teach tol erance, acceptance,
and enbracing. He asked what the balance between what the
parents and the schools should be teaching is.

M5. HI MSHOOT said it is a tough question. She said if he had
asked the question in 1960 Sel ma, there would have been room for
suggestions. She said there nust be bal ance. Teachers are held
to a higher standard and each teacher has to answer that
guestion. If the dialogue in the famly is open, it will be a
| earni ng opportunity for everyone.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY said parents are taking children out because they
believe the school is injecting values between them and the
school. Schools are not teaching objective content, but val ues-
based content.

4:14: 21 PM
At ease

4:15: 24 PM
CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked about Conmmon Cor e.

M5. HI MSHOOT expl ai ned that Conmon Core used to be an effort by
the state to put together a set of standards and it has becone
an incredibly |oaded, dysfunctional issue. It is a ness.
However, kids in Alaska can do what other kids in the U S. can
do. She wants rigorous standards, such as the new standards are.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked if Al aska adopted Common Cor e.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 8- March 24, 2016



MS. H MSHOOT said no. Al aska created its own set of standards.

CHAIR DUNLEAVY asked if Alaska can develop nore rigorous
st andar ds.

IVS. H MSHOOT said yes, but child developnent should be
consi dered. The departnment should increase rigor in Al aska, but
have its own set of standards.

4:19:52 PM
At ease
Pr of essi onal Teachi ng Practi ces Comm ssi on ( PTPC)

4:20: 08 PM

DAVI D DEVAUGHN, Appoi nt ee, Pr of essi onal Teaching Practices
Conmi ssion, testified as a nom nee for the Professional Teaching
Practices Conm ssion. He shared his professional teaching
background and his experience for the last three years on PTPC
hel ping to hold the profession to a high standard.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked why he wants to be re-appointed to the
Conmi ssi on.

MR. DEVAUGHN rel ated that the Conm ssion keeps teachers aware of
a code of ethics and puts good teachers in front of students.

4:21:58 PM
SENATOR GARDNER asked him to speak nore about the process of
keepi ng teachers aware.

MR. DEVAUGHN commented that every teacher in the state receives
a copy of the code of ethics and links to the PTPC website. They
al so receive a spring newsletter that provides information on
sanctions, the code of ethics, and consequences.

SENATOR GARDNER asked, after serving three years on the
commi ssion, what is different in his understandi ng of PTPC,

MR. DEVAUGHN replied that he has nore awareness about how things
can snowball for a well-meaning teacher and the ramfications
and i npacts of breaking rules.

4:23:45 PM

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked about the nature of violations he has had
to deal wth.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 9- March 24, 2016



MR. DEVAUGHT reported that there have been contract violations
and di sputes between teachers, adm nistration, and students, and
t here have been social nedia infractions.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked if there has been inproper contact between
t eachers and student.

MR. DEVAUGHN sai d yes.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked i f t here have been soci al medi a
i nfracti ons.

MR. DEVAUGHN sai d yes.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked if it is ok for children to be used for
political purposes.

4:26: 30 PM
MR DEVAUGHN said there have been no issues like that since he
has been there.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked if the standards prohibit it and if anyone
has filed a petition or violation on that issue.

MR. DEVAUGHN said it is prohibited and he has not seen any
violations in three years.

CHAIR DUNLEAVY asked if he wonders if parents have given
perm ssion for their children's picture to be used.

MR. DEVAUGHN has not seen that and did not know if any teachers
woul d do that.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY said he was careful to protect student privacy.

4:29: 24 PM

MELODY MANN, Appointee, Al aska, Professional Teaching Practices
Comm ssion, testified as a nom nee for the Professional Teaching
Practices Commi ssion. She provided her background as an art
t eacher and her service on PTPC.

4:31: 08 PM

SENATOR GARDNER t hanked her for her willingness to serve again
on the Commi ssion. She asked about an NEA-Al aska award for
mnority | eadership in education.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -10- March 24, 2016



M5. MANN said her appointnment to PTPC cane through NEA-Al aska
i nvol venent. She said she took advantage of training they
provided, one of which was mnority |I|eadership, and she
participates in the del egation.

SENATOR GARDNER asked if she has suggestions about recruiting
and retaining mnority teachers.

M5. MANN said she does not.

4:34: 08 PM
SENATOR G ESSEL noted Ms. Mann is a Nana sharehol der and asked
where she is from

M5. MANN said her famly is from Kot zebue.

4:35: 07 PM

PAUL PRUSSI NG Appoi ntee, Pr of essi onal Teaching Practices
Conmi ssion, testified as a nom nee for the Professional Teaching
Practices Comm ssion. He provided his professional background in
the Departnment of Education and Early Devel opnent (DEED) and
said that the Comm ssioner asked himto be on PTPC. He said the
intent of PTPC is to "serve as a preventative and positive force
in helping to enhance the professional perfornmance of al
educators so that the public's right to the best education
possible for all of Alaska's students is adequately protected.”
He provided the history of PTPC and described its makeup five
teachers, one superintendent, one principal, one departnent
representative, and one hi gher education representative.

He described his personal and fam |y background. He stressed the
i mportance of the professionalism of teachers. He concluded that
he is honored to be a part of the Comm ssion.

4:37:51 PM
SENATOR GARDNER asked if he is representing the departnment and
to share about his progression fromteaching to the departnent.

MR. PRUSSING replied that he is representing the departnent. He
recalled his journey from comrercial fishing to teaching and
then to working at the departnent.

4:38:53 PM

CHAI R DUNLEAVY asked about social nedia infractions in teaching
pr of essi ons.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -11- March 24, 2016



MR. PRUSSING said he is aware of it and nost districts have
technol ogy plans to deal with it. He pointed out that PTPC is
the final stop, but nost discipline actions are taken at the
| ocal board | evel

CHAI R DUNLEAVY said the conmmi ssion determ nes when a teacher's
certificate should be sanctioned or revoked.

SENATOR G ESSEL noted M. Prussing's diverse resune.

4:41: 04 PM
MR. PRUSSING said he agrees that his experience is helpful in
his position at the department for the past 17 years.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY conplinented M. Prussing and asked him to keep
the issue of using children for political purposes in mnd.

MR. PRUSSI NG said he is sensitive to it.

4. 42:55 PM

FRANCI S ROBERTS, Appointee, Professional Teaching Practices
Comm ssion, testified as an appointee for the Professional
Teachi ng Practices Conm ssion. She provided her background as a
mat h teacher, her educational background, and her community
i nvol venent. She said she has been on PTPC for the last three
years.

4:45: 00 PM
SENATOR G ESSEL asked about her background in natural resources
and Youth for Environmental Action (YEA).

M5. ROBERTS spoke of her involvenent in the natural resources
course at Honmer Hi gh School. She explained that YEA students
participate in activities that help the environment, such as
cl eani ng beaches, and speaking to the |egislature about sal non
fishing concerns.

4:47: 07 PM
SENATOR GARDNER asked about the mni-farm

MS. ROBERTS described the aninmals in the classroom

Uni versity of Al aska Board of Regents

4:48:10 PM
STACEY LUCASON, Appointee, University of Alaska Board of
Regents, testified as an appointed to the University of Al aska

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -12- March 24, 2016



Board of Regents. She provided her experience as the student
representative to the Board and her background at the
university. She said she is currently in a master's program for
public adm nistration. She related that she wants to serve on
the Board because of her positive higher education experience as
a non-traditional student. She shared that she was the student
body president |ast year.

4:50: 32 PM

SENATOR GARDNER thanked her for her wllingness to serve. She
asked if she woul d be speaking from her own experience or if she
woul d ask students for their opinion.

M5. LUCASON said she would do outreach to students as she did
when she was student body president. She provided exanpl es.

4:52: 44 PM

CHAI R DUNLEAVY thought it was «critical that a student's
perspective be represented on the Board of Regents. He asked
what her top three issues are.

M5. LUCASON sai d parking and food are favorite topics of concern
of students. More inportant policy issues are whether there
shoul d be one university or three or nore. Al so, inportant are
partnerships wth school districts and businesses for acceptance
into college and entry into graduate programs and the job
mar ket .

4:56: 52 PM
CHAI R DUNLEAVY requested she wuse this opportunity to nmake
student voi ces heard.

4:58: 05 PM

DEENA PARAMO, Appointee, University of Al aska Board of Regents,
testified as an appointee to the University of Al aska Board of
Regents. She provided her background as Superintendent of the
Mat - Su School District. She said she was appointed to the Board
last fall to replace soneone who left md-term She said it is a
good opportunity for her in her current position to serve on the
Board. She understands that the university serves the state. Her
goal is to facilitate partnerships with the university.

5:00: 16 PM

SENATOR GARDNER conplinmented Dr. Parano on her wonderful
reputation. She asked about several progranms: Mddle College,
STEM and pre-school prograns.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -13- March 24, 2016



DR. PARAMO expl ai ned how the M ddle College works - juniors and
seniors can dually enroll in college and high school. The M ddl e
Col | ege prepares students to pass the ACCUPLACER entrance exam
and then earn college credits and eventually associate degrees.
The goal is to be college ready.

She described the partnership with STEM and with the Mth and
Science Initiative, which provides opportunity for teacher
training in order to reach out to nore students to take honors
cl asses. She explained how they also partnered with ANSEP at the
m ddl e school |evel. They sent nine teachers in to train along
with the 54 students.

She described resources she uses for pre-school prograns, such
as Head Start.

5:08: 13 PM
SENATOR GARDNER asked if every student passes the ACCUPLACER
first before enrolling in college courses.

DR. PARAMO said students either pass it or they work with them
to pass it.

CHAI R DUNLEAVY | ooked forward to talking to Dr. Parano about
safety issues on canpus.

CHAIR DUNLEAVY nmoved to advance the following nanmes for
appointment to the full menbership of the legislature in joint
session for consideration and a final vote:

State Board of Education & Early Devel opnent
Rebecca H nshoot - Sitka

Pr of essi onal Teaching Practices Commi ssion
Davi d DeVaughn - North Pole
Mel ody Mann - Wasilla
Paul Prussing - Juneau
Francis Roberts - Homer

Uni versity of Al aska
Stacy Lucason - Anchorage
Deena Paranp - Pal ner

He noted this does not reflect any intent by the nenbers to vote

for or against the confirmation of the individuals during any
further sessions.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -14- March 24, 2016



5:11:17 PM
There being no further business to cone before the commttee,
Chair Dunl eavy adjourned the Senate Education Standing Conmttee
at 5:11 p.m

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 15- March 24, 2016



